IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. SC11-725

RICHARD BARRY RANDOLPH,

Appellant, v.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND PUTNAM COUNTY, FLORIDA

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

RACHEL DAY Assistant CCRC Florida Bar #0066850

M. CHANCE MEYER Staff Attorney Florida Bar #0056362

Capital Collateral Regional Counsel-South 101 N.E. 3rd Avenue, Suite 400 Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33301 Tel (954) 713-1284 Fax (954) 713- 1299

COUNSEL FOR MR. RANDOLPH

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

INTRODUCTION

In Porter v. McCollum, the United States Supreme Court ruled that this Court's Strickland analysis in Porter v. State, 788 So. 2d 917 (Fla. 2001) was "an unreasonable application of our clearly established law." 130 S. Ct. 447, 455 (2009). The United States Supreme Court made that determination pursuant to the standard established by the Anti-Terrorism Effective Death Penalty Act ("AEDPA"), which does not permit a federal court to reverse a state court ruling on constitutional grounds simply because the federal court disagrees or the federal court thinks the state court was wrong, but rather requires what is treated as an extremely high level of deference to state court rulings, prohibiting federal courts from altering state court judgments and sentences unless the application of federal law by the state court, which in the *Porter* case was *Strickland*, was unreasonable, meaning not even supported by reason or a rationale. It is in this context that the United States Supreme Court's ruling in *Porter* must be read. When asking whether Porter requires a change in this Court's jurisprudence going forward, it must be considered that the United States Supreme Court in Porter found this Court's application of *Strickland* to be so unreasonable that the United States Supreme Court found it appropriate to reach past its concerns of federalism and deference to state courts and respect for state sovereignty to correct the unconstitutional ruling.

Mr. Randolph asks this Court to consider *Porter* introspectively, looking past the first blush language of the opinion, and inquiring into whether or not *Porter* forbids something that this Court has done in the present case. In other words, giving *Porter* a read-through and asking if this case is distinguishable may be insufficient to identify the underlying constitutional problem; Mr. Randolph asks this Court to attain a sense for the problem in conceptual approach that *Porter* identifies and then ask if something similar happened here. This Court must consider whether the unreasonable analysis in *Porter* was merely an aberration, limited solely to the penalty phase ineffectiveness claim in that case and wholly different and separate from other *Strickland* analyses by this Court, or was it in fact indicative of a non-isolated conceptual problem in this Court's approach to *Strickland* issues that occurred also in the present case.

STATEMENT OF CASE AND FACTS

Mr. Randolph raised an ineffective assistance of counsel claim in his initial postconviction proceedings, on which an evidentiary hearing was conducted. During Mr. Randolph's evidentiary hearing, his trial counsel testified. Trial counsel made it clear that he conducted no investigation into Mr. Randolph's background in preparation for Mr. Randolph's penalty phase. Rather, trial counsel explained that his approach to the penalty phase investigation was to leave it to Dr. Krop, his mental health expert, to be the judge of what was relevant and to conduct

any investigation. (PCR. 3181, 3193). Dr. Krop was the only witness presented by the defense during the penalty phase. Trial counsel testified that he left it to Dr. Krop to be the judge of what was relevant in Mr. Randolph's life to his mitigation case. (PCR. 3191-92). Dr. Krop testified that none of the statutory mitigators existed. *Randolph v. State*, 562 So. 2d 331, 334 (1990).

Even under those circumstances, with trial counsel doing nothing to organize a mitigation case, the jury recommended death by a narrow margin of eight-to-four.

At the postconviction evidentiary hearing, counsel presented numerous family and friends that testified with first hand, emotionally-charged accounts of Mr. Randolph's childhood abuse, including being shut in a closet for days, emotional problems and drug abuse. Counsel also presented neuro-psychologist Dr. Hyman Eisenstein, who found the existence of statutory mitigation and addiction expert Dr. Milton Burglass.

Mr. Randolph's family and friends testified in striking detail about Mr. Randolph's drug problems, emotional problems, child abuse and personal history, including how his adoption made him feel like he was not a real boy, how he was at times locked in a closet for days at a time as punishment, and how he smoked a huge amount of crack cocaine the day before the offense. Witnesses were not

contacted by the trial team and the many mitigators their testimony would have offered went unutilized.

Mr. Randolph's father, Timothy Randolph, testified that in 1969 or 1970, the school, concerned about Mr. Randolph's behavior, recommended that Timothy and his wife—Mr. Randolph's adoptive mother—Pearl Randolph take Mr. Randolph to a psychiatrist for medication to control his behavior. (PCR. 3624). Mr. Randolph was medicated for over two years, and it seemed to help. (PCR. 3624-25). Timothy explained that to attempt to control Mr. Randolph's disruptive behavior he would punish and beat Mr. Randolph. (PCR. 3642-45). Timothy explained that his wife Pearl loved Mr. Randolph until she lost control when Mr. Randolph was a little boy. (PCR. 3645).

Timothy and Pearl divorced in 1972, when Mr. Randolph was 10, because of Pearl's drinking problem and resulting behavior. (PCR. 3619-20). When Pearl was intoxicated she would frequently burn meals and engage in bouts of uncontrollable behavior. (PCR. 3620). Timothy explained that they frequently argued in front of Mr. Randolph. (PCR. 3622).

When Mr. Randolph was older, Timothy came to understand that Mr. Randolph was using drugs. One day he found Mr. Randolph in his car sleeping and suspected drug use. (PCR. 3635-36). Timothy would see Mr. Randolph and urge him to get his life together. When Mr. Randolph was arrested for murder in

Palatka, Timothy regretted that he had never provided help after learning Mr. Randolph had a drug problem. (PCR. 3637).

Timothy was contacted to attend the judge sentencing after Mr. Randolph was convicted. Timothy explained that had he been asked to testify, he would have done so very willingly. (PCR. 3640).

Regarding Mr. Randolph's adoptive mother, Pearl Randolph, trial counsel testified he would have wanted Dr. Krop to inquire of Randolph's parents, whether he, as counsel, had the information or not. Trial counsel said if Dr. Krop had had the information provided by Pearl Randolph, he would have elicited the information during Dr. Krop's testimony. (PCR. 3197).

During the evidentiary hearing, Pearl Randolph testified that Timothy had suggested they adopt a child. (PCR. 3660). Having never heard of adoption, Pearl was initially not agreeable, but eventually agreed. (PCR. 3660). Pearl explained that she went to an agency and after two years was told the agency had a boy child for her. They named the child Richard Barry Randolph. (PCR. 3661). During the first two years, Pearl noticed Mr. Randolph not acting normally. He cried such that Pearl believed something was out of the ordinary. (PCR. 3662-63). Mr. Randolph would have tantrums, grit his teeth and do unusual things. (PCR. 3663). Pearl noticed that neither his hands nor feet developed normally. (PCR. 3663). Pearl came to believe that the adoption agency knew something was wrong with the

infant or the mother but had not told her. (PCR. 3663). Mr. Randolph's unusual behavior continued as he grew up.

When Mr. Randolph was told of his adoption, he was extremely upset, screaming and crying, and could not accept the news; he was four- or five-years-old at the time (PCR. 3664-65).

Concerning her marriage to Timothy, Pearl explained that it was Mr. Randolph who learned that Timothy was talking on the phone to other women and Mr. Randolph who eventually told Pearl. (PCR. 3665). Mr. Randolph told Pearl that when she went to work, women called Timothy and that Mr. Randolph had listened in on the phone. (PCR. 3665). After he told her, Pearl realized that the knowledge upset Mr. Randolph very much. (PCR. 3666). Once Pearl learned of Timothy's infidelities, their marriage fell apart. (PCR. 3668). Thus, it was Mr. Randolph's disclosure of his father's infidelity that led to the separation of his parents. Later, after Timothy left Pearl, she witnessed him beat Mr. Randolph harshly. (PCR. 3667). Pearl told Timothy to hit her instead and explained that Timothy had once beaten her badly with a broom, requiring that she call the police. (PCR. 3668). Pearl had to get psychological help when she learned that Timothy was going to remarry. (PCR. 3671). Pearl relieved her emotional pain usually by drinking beer. (PCR. 3671).

Mr. Randolph came to live with her for a summer and his senior year of high school. (PCR. 3672). During his senior year, Pearl noticed he was still having tantrums and still gritting his teeth, as he had always done before. (PCR. 3675). No one from Mr. Randolph's defense team ever attempted to contact Pearl by telephone or letter. Pearl explained that she would have certainly testified on her son's behalf if asked. (PCR. 3676).

Mr. Randolph's stepmother, Shirley Randolph, also testified at the evidentiary hearing. Shirley explained how Mr. Randolph came to live with her and Timothy shortly after they were married and stayed until his senior year. Shirley described their relationship as not the best, but not terrible, (PCR. 3649), and explained that Mr. Randolph had a good relationship with Jermaine, his young stepbrother. (PCR. 3649). Shirley explained that Mr. Randolph did not speak about Pearl or express much emotion, (PCR. 3649), and he never saw Pearl while living with her and Timothy. To her recollection, Pearl never called, sent for him, came to visit, sent him birthday cards or called him on his birthday. (PCR. 3650-51). Shirley also explained however that neither she nor Timothy ever celebrated Mr. Randolph's birthday. (PCR. 3655). Shirley was never contacted by trial counsel or any other member of Mr. Randolph's trial defense team but would have testified had she been asked. (PCR. 3654).

In addition to family members, collateral counsel presented the testimony of other witnesses who had not been contacted by trial counsel. Janene Betts's mother, Verna Whitney Betts (PCR. 3297), testified at the lower court evidentiary hearing. Mrs. Betts met Mr. Randolph Randolph in Fairfield, North Carolina in 1986 when he was Janene's boyfriend. (PCR. 3298). He called Verna "mama" and wanted her to be his mother because she did not use punishment in the unusual and severe way his father had. (PCR. 3336, 3339). Betts and Mr. Randolph became close. Mr. Randolph had suffered severe punishment for minor things during his childhood. (PCR. 3318).

His parents put him in a room or closet for two to three days in the dark and forced him to eat alone. (PCR. 3318, 3339). Mr. Randolph was required to be an A student by his father and tried and tried to get good grades to avoid punishment. Mr. Randolph felt badly because he saw Mrs. Betts's treatment of her children and it hurt him that he was not treated as a "real" child of his father's or as well as his father's natural son. (PCR. 3319, 3324). Mr. Randolph felt like an outcast in his own family. (PCR. 3325). Betts explained that when she saw Mr. Randolph get angry, many times she noticed he would bite himself on the arm, hand, and fingers. (PCR. 3321-22). Janene and Mr. Randolph's daughter displays similar behavior. (PCR. 3322). Mr. Randolph would also do things to harm himself when he was frustrated. (PCR. 3326). Betts was aware of Mr. Randolph's drug use because he

would have red eyes and be different at times. While she found it difficult to tell exactly the difference between when he was on drugs and when he was not, she thought she could tell the difference. (PCR. 3334). Betts observed Mr. Randolph walk the floors and talk to himself many times at the house as well as walk the floors and bite himself. (PCR. 3327). Betts did not recall anyone from Randolph's defense team interviewing her. (PCR. 3302). She would have shared what she knew about Mr. Randolph or testified if asked. (PCR. 3302).

Ronzial Williams testified at the evidentiary hearing as to the extent of Mr. Randolph's chronic use of crack cocaine and his very large crack cocaine use the night before the offense. According to Williams, Randolph would smoke \$300-\$400 worth of crack cocaine any chance he could get it. (PCR. 3705-06). The effect of the crack cocaine on Mr. Randolph was that it would cause Mr. Randolph to have mood swings, to talk to himself, and to get anxious when he wanted more crack and could not get more. (PCR. 3706). Mr. Randolph would want to do something to make money so he could get more crack cocaine. They would drive people places and sell things for money. (PCR. 3106). Williams was with Randolph the night before he was arrested. They did the same thing they did every night they were together: Williams smoked marijuana and Mr. Randolph smoked crack cocaine. (PCR. 3109). Williams explained that on the day before Randolph was arrested, Mr. Randolph smoked crack cocaine the entire time. (PCR. 3720).

Mr. Randolph smoked from a \$100 rock of crack cocaine given to him by Elijah, a friend of Williams, in the car on the way to Weleka. (PCR. 3723-24). Neither Williams nor his girlfriend smoked any of that crack cocaine, as they were not in the habit of smoking cocaine. (PCR. 3725). In Weleka, Mr. Randolph finished the \$100 rock. (PCR. 3725). Back in Palatka, Mr. Randolph got another \$200 rock of crack cocaine. (PCR. 3725). Mr. Randolph smoked off that rock of crack cocaine when they drove to the country. (PCR. 3725). Later that night, different guys they gave a ride to gave Mr. Randolph additional crack cocaine. (PCR. 3726-27). Williams also saw Mr. Randolph smoke crack cocaine on Lemon Street. (PCR. 3719-20, 3726). From around 1:00 in the afternoon, until around 11:00 p.m. or midnight, except for the short time they were apart in the afternoon, Williams witnessed Randolph's crack cocaine consumption. (PCR. 3720). Because he saw the many pieces Randolph smoked, his estimation was that Mr. Randolph smoked about \$300 worth. (PCR. 3720). Williams explained that no one from Randolph's defense team ever spoke with him about Mr. Randolph's drug use, but he would have testified at trial as to the same information had he been asked. (PCR. 3710).

Trial counsel failed to call any of the aforementioned people. Trial counsel testified that had he known of them, he would have told Dr. Krop because the information might have satisfied Dr. Krop that there was a mitigator or other

evidence to rebut intent. (PCR. 3186-88). Trial counsel testified that he did not call or contact these witnesses because he did not know they existed. (PCR. 3260).

In addition to failing to conduct an adequate investigation, counsel failed to ensure that Mr. Randolph was provided adequate mental health expert assistance. During the evidentiary hearing, counsel presented neuro-psychologist Hyman H. Eisenstein, Ph.D. (PCR. 807-09, 3365-3516). Dr. Eisenstein, conducted the Halstead-Reitan neuro-psychological battery on Mr. Randolph twice and found significant organic brain damage. (PCR. 3391-3402). Together with the background materials, head traumas, cognitive impairment due to chronic drug use and, learning disabilities and emotional trauma, Dr. Eisenstein found that the two mental health statutory mitigating circumstances existed at the time of the offense as well as a plethora of non-statutory mitigation. (PCR. 3417-19).

Dr. Milton Burglass, an expert in addiction medicine, also testified at the state court evidentiary hearing. Burglass described the effects of Randolph's drug use generally and at the time of the offense. (PCR. 3546-56). Further, as detailed in his report, Burglass noted that Randolph suffered from uncinate fits in childhood characterized by sudden onset, brief duration, sudden resolution, subjective feelings of rage, expression of physical violence usually directed at the environment (punching walls or breaking things), the concurrent overwhelming urge to bite or chew on anything (he has scars on both thumbs from having bitten

and chewed himself over the years), the concurrent perception of an acrid smell (something like a burning tire or like burning metal), and the concurrent coloring of the entire visual field (red, for Mr. Randolph). (PCR. 2677-78). Mr. Randolph continued to suffer from uncinate fits as an adult and the use of cocaine and other drugs would have exacerbated Mr. Randolph's neurological disease. Other history with neuro-psychiatric implication found by Burglass include: A) Randolph's 1979 closed head injury with brief loss of consciousness; B) Randolph's bedwetting that continues to the present (even in prison); C) Randolph's sleepwalking and sleep-talking; D) Randolph's breath-holding when angry as a child; E) Randolph's multiple allergies and frequent nosebleeds (unrelated to cocaine); and F) Randolph's drug treatment in grade school which "calmed him down and made him sleepy," suggesting the use of a psychostimulant (Dexedrine or Ritalin) for a likely diagnosis of hyperactivity or minimal brain dysfunction. (PCR. 2671-79).

On those facts, the ruling of this Court that Mr. Randolph challenges here is as follows:

After considering all of the evidence, the postconviction court concluded that none of the witnesses at the evidentiary hearing offered any mitigation testimony in addition to that presented by Dr. Krop at the penalty phase. We find this conclusion is supported by competent, substantial evidence in the record.

The instant case is remarkably similar to *Robinson* v. State, 707 So. 2d 688 (Fla.1998), and *Breedlove v. State*, 692 So. 2d 874 (Fla.1997). In both cases, the defendants claimed that defense counsel was ineffective for failing to investigate each defendant's background, failing to furnish mental health experts with relevant information which would have supported their testimony about mitigating factors, and failing to call family members and friends who would have testified about each defendant's childhood abuse, mental instability, and addiction to drugs and alcohol. See Robinson, 707 So. 2d at 695; Breedlove, 692 So. 2d at 877. However, we found that neither Robinson nor Breedlove demonstrated the prejudice necessary to mandate relief under Strickland because the mitigation overlooked by defense counsel would not have changed the outcome of the defendant's sentence in light of the evidence. See Robinson, 707 So. 2d at 697; Breedlove, 692 So. 2d at 878; see also Tompkins v. Dugger, 549 So. 2d 1370, 1373 (Fla.1989) (finding the mitigating evidence overlooked by defense counsel would not have changed the outcome and therefore did not demonstrate prejudice under the Strickland test). We reach the same conclusion in this case.

Even if Pearl's decision to solely rely on Dr. Krop's testimony was deficient, Randolph has not demonstrated error in the postconviction court's conclusion that no prejudice resulted from Pearl's performance. Considering the four valid aggravators and the cumulative nature of the testimony from the evidentiary hearing, we find no error in the postconviction court's finding that Randolph has not demonstrated the prejudice necessary to mandate relief. *Robinson*, 707 So.2d at 697; *see also Routly v. State*, 590 So.2d 397, 401 (Fla.1991) (finding that defendant did not demonstrate reasonable probability that sentence would have been different had trial counsel presented proffered mitigating evidence where much of the evidence was already before the judge and jury in a different form).

Randolph v. State, 853 So. 2d 1051, 1060-61 (Fla. 2003).

On November 29, 2010, Mr. Randolph filed a successive motion to vacate judgments of conviction and sentence pursuant to 3.851 alleging that this Court failed to properly analyze prejudice based on clearly established federal law as set forth in *Porter v. McCollum* and *Strickland v. Washington*. (R. 1-26). The State responded (R3. 38-55) and the circuit court entered an order denying relief on March 7, 2011 (R. 142-151). Mr. Randolph timely filed a notice of appeal, and the present appeal follows.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENTS

- I. *Porter* represents a change in the *Strickland* jurisprudence of this Court that creates a claim cognizable in a successive 3.851 motion because it applies retroactively.
- II. Applying *Porter* to the facts of Mr. Randolph's case demonstrates that relief is warranted under *Strickland*.

STANDARD OF REVIEW

The issues presented in this appeal consist of two parts: the first is the determination of whether the *Porter* claim is cognizable, meaning whether it creates a change in Florida law and is retroactive in nature. That issue is a question of law that must be reviewed de novo. *See Randolph v. Dugger*, 515 So. 2d 173, 175 (Fla. 1987); *James v. State*, 615 So. 2d 668, 669 (Fla. 1993). The second is the

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