IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

RICHARD RANDOLPH,	
Appellant,	
v.	Case No. SC11-725
STATE OF FLORIDA,	
Appellee.	

ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE

PAMELA JO BONDI ATTORNEY GENERAL

Barbara C. Davis Assistant Attorney General Florida Bar No. 0410519 444 Seabreeze Blvd., 5th Floor Telephone: (386) 238-4990

Facsimile: (386) 226-0457

COUNSEL FOR APPELLEE

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

Randolph's successive Rule 3.851 motion is time-barred and does not come within any exception to Rule 3.851(d)(2). The motion was an attempt to relitigate his previously-denied IAC/penalty phase counsel claims under the guise that *Porter v. McCollum*, 130 S. Ct. 447 (2009) constitutes an alleged "change in law" which should be applied retroactively. Despite Randolph' insistence to the contrary, *Porter* is no more than the United States Supreme Court's application of *Strickland v. Washington*, 466 U.S. 668, 104 S. Ct. 2052 (1984), to the particular facts of that case. The Supreme Court did <u>not</u> hold that the *Porter* decision established a new fundamental constitutional right that is to apply retroactively.

The trial court held Randolph' motion untimely, successive, procedurally barred, and unauthorized under Rule 3.85, Florida Rules of Criminal Procedure. These rulings should be affirmed.

The patently frivolous nature of the successive motion is further highlighted by the fact that *Porter* was reversed on the prejudice prong analysis. Whereas, Randolph's IAC/penalty phase claim – based on the allege failure to adequately investigate mitigation - was denied based on a lack of deficiency. Thus, any attempt to relitigate the prejudice prong is immaterial.

Last, collateral counsel is not authorized to file the instant successive motion. See, § 27.702(1) and § 27.711(1)(c), Fla. Stat.

STANDARDS OF REVIEW

Florida Rule of Criminal Procedure 3.851(f)(5)(B) permits summary denial of a successive motion for post-conviction relief without an evidentiary hearing "[i]f the motion, files, and records in the case conclusively show that the movant is entitled to no relief." *Williamson v. State*, 961 So. 2d 229, 234 (Fla. 2007). This Court reviews the circuit court's decision to summarily deny a successive rule 3.851 motion *de novo*, accepting the movant's factual allegations as true to the extent they are not refuted by the record, and affirming the ruling if the record conclusively shows that the movant is entitled to no relief. *Walton v. State*, 3 So. 3d 1000, 1005 (Fla. 2009), *citing State v. Coney*, 845 So. 2d 120, 137 (Fla. 2003); Fla. R.Crim. P. 3.851(f)(5)(B).

In order to support summary denial, "the trial court must either state its rationale in the order denying relief or attach portions of the record that would refute the

claims." *Nixon v. State*, 932 So. 2d 1009, 1018 (Fla. 2006). Here, as in *Rose v. State*, 985 So. 2d 500 (Fla. 2008), the trial court entered a comprehensive written order disclosing the basis for the summary denial of Randolph's successive motion to vacate and providing for meaningful appellate review. *Id., citing Nixon*, 932 So. 2d at 1018.

ARGUMENT

THE TRIAL JUDGE DID NOT ERR IN DENYING THE SUCCESSIVE MOTION FOR POSTCONVICTION RELIEF

Randolph raises several issues in this appeal:

- (1) Both the circuit court and this Court erred in denying Randolph's first postconviction motion (Brief at 15-16);
- (2) *Porter v. McCollum*, 130 S.Ct. 447 (2009), is a change in law which requires the circuit court and this Court to re-hear Randolph's ineffectiveness claims (Brief at 16);
- (3) Generally, this Court's *Strickland* analysis is flawed (Brief at 29-46);
- (4) In the present case, this Court erred in it's application of *Strickland; Porter* requires re-analysis (Brief at 45-47).

Randolph's position is he is entitled to rehearing on his ineffective assistance of counsel claims because *Porter* changed the *Strickland* prejudice analysis and applies retroactively.

Randolph generally argues that the circuit court's and this Court's analysis in the prior postconviction proceeding was flawed. He specifically argues only one issue: "Dr. Eisenstein found that statutory mitigators were present, and Dr. Krop found that there no statutory mitigators present." (Brief at 47).

<u>Arguments are waived.</u> Because Randolph fails to specifically identify the alleged errors, describe the factual determination he believes was necessary, or even set

out the facts he believes are pertinent to the claim, Randolph has waived the argument. See Cooper v. State, 856 So. 2d 969, 977 n. 7 (Fla. 2003) ("Cooper ... contend[s], without specific reference or supportive argument, that the 'lower court erred in its summary denial of these claims.' We find speculative, unsupported argument of this type to be improper, and deny relief based thereon."); Duest v. Dugger, 555 So. 2d 849, 852 (Fla.1990) ("The purpose of an appellate brief is to present arguments in support of the points on appeal. Merely making reference to arguments below without further elucidation does not suffice to preserve issues."). See also Johnston v. State, 63 So.3d 730 (Fla. 2011); Victorino v. State, 23 So.3d 87, 103 (Fla. 2009) ("We have previously stated that '[t]he purpose of an appellate brief is to present arguments in support of the points on appeal." (quoting Duest v. Dugger, 555 So. 2d 849, 852 (Fla.1990)).

<u>Arguments have no merit.</u> In denying postconviction relief in the original postconviction, this Court held:

Ineffective Assistance of Counsel During the Penalty Phase

Randolph claims defense counsel was ineffective in failing to adequately investigate and present crucial mitigating evidence and in failing to ensure Randolph received an adequate mental health examination. In order to prove an ineffective assistance of counsel claim, a defendant must establish two elements:

First, the defendant must show that counsel's performance was deficient. This requires showing that counsel made errors so

serious that counsel was not functioning as the "counsel" guaranteed the defendant by the Sixth Amendment. Second, the defendant must show that the deficient performance prejudiced the defense. This requires showing that counsel's errors were so serious as to deprive the defendant of a fair trial, a trial whose result is reliable.

Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 687, 104 S.Ct. 2052, 80 L.Ed.2d 674 (1984); see also Rutherford v. State, 727 So. 2d 216 (Fla.1998); Rose v. State, 675 So. 2d 567 (Fla.1996). Ineffective assistance of counsel claims present a mixed question of law and fact subject to plenary review based on the Strickland test. See Rose v. State, 675 So. 2d 567, 571 (Fla.1996). This requires an independent review of the trial court's legal conclusions, while giving deference to the trial court's factual findings. See Riechmann, 777 So. 2d at 350. We find Randolph has failed to establish ineffective assistance of counsel as to either of his claims.

First, Randolph claims defense counsel, Howard Pearl, was ineffective in failing to independently and adequately investigate crucial mitigating evidence. At the July 1997 evidentiary hearing, Pearl explained that his approach to the penalty phase was to employ psychologist Dr. Harry Krop as a mental health expert and leave it up to Dr. Krop to conduct an investigation into penalty phase mitigation and determine what was relevant. Pearl explained it would not have been his practice to call Randolph's relatives to testify at the penalty phase. Instead, Pearl preferred to present mitigation through Dr. Krop because "his testimony is a history of a patient, is an exception to the hearsay rule. So, I get it in through him and I don't have to worry about loose cannons on the deck." Randolph complains that Pearl's approach to the penalty phase fell outside the reasonable bounds of professional conduct and rendered the outcome of Randolph's penalty phase unreliable. Randolph also complains about Pearl's failure to obtain his school and military records.

At the evidentiary hearing, Randolph presented testimony from his father, mother, stepmother, and his girlfriend's mother as to mitigation he argues should have been presented during his penalty phase had defense counsel conducted a thorough background investigation. The postconviction court

summarized the evidence Randolph argues should have been presented:

[He] was placed for adoption at birth, spent time in an orphanage; was adopted by Pearl and Timothy Randolph at six months of age; that Pearl Randolph was mentally unstable, was hospitalized for psychiatric care and was an alcoholic who rejected the idea of adoption and said she could never love an adopted child; that Timothy Randolph was abusive, over-demanding, hot-tempered, often absent and promiscuous; that [Randolph] never had a close relationship with his father; that [Randolph] suffered a lifetime of mental illness; that [Randolph] suffered a lifetime of drug addiction; that he suffered drastic mood changes and outbursts as a child often injuring himself; that he spent time in a day care center as a child while his parents worked; that he was under psychiatric care at age ten; that he grew up amid vicious battles between his parents; that he discovered his father's adulterous relationship; that his parents divorced when he was a child; and that he became addicted to drugs while in the military and continued to use drugs up until the time of the murder.

However, Dr. Krop's testimony at the penalty phase, as summarized by the postconviction court, revealed the following:

[Randolph] was adopted by Timothy and Pearl Randolph at five months of age; that he had difficulty getting along with others in school; that he received psychiatric counseling in the third grade; that Pearl Randolph was emotionally unstable and was hospitalized on a couple of occasions for psychiatric reasons and was an ineffective parent; that [Randolph] was physically abused by his father when his father would tie him up and hit him with his hand, a broomstick or belt all over the body; that [Randolph] was overly sensitive about his small stature; that he graduated high school and served time in the Army before being honorably discharged; that he used drugs while in the Army; that his drug use progressed from marijuana to cocaine and then crack cocaine; that [Randolph] was more irritable, his mood changed, and he flew off the handle while using drugs; that he was a crack cocaine

addict and his personality and lifestyle were affected by his drug use beginning in 1984 and particularly in 1988; that his behavior at the time of the murder was influenced by his drug use; that he suffers from a personality disorder; that he never felt close to anyone except his girlfriend; and that he perceived neither of his parents loved him.FN8

FN8. This Court also summarized Dr. Krop's penalty phase testimony in its opinion affirming Randolph's conviction and sentence. See Randolph, 562 So. 2d at 334.

After considering all of the evidence, the postconviction court concluded that none of the witnesses at the evidentiary hearing offered any mitigation testimony in addition to that presented by Dr. Krop at the penalty phase. We find this conclusion is supported by competent, substantial evidence in the record.

The instant case is remarkably similar to *Robinson v. State*, 707 So. 2d 688 (Fla.1998), and *Breedlove v. State*, 692 So. 2d 874 (Fla.1997). In both cases, the defendants claimed that defense counsel was ineffective for failing to investigate each defendant's background, failing to furnish mental health experts with relevant information which would have supported their testimony about mitigating factors, and failing to call family members and friends who would have testified about each defendant's childhood abuse, mental instability, and addiction to drugs and alcohol. See Robinson, 707 So. 2d at 695; Breedlove, 692 So. 2d at 877. However, we found that neither Robinson nor Breedlove demonstrated the prejudice necessary to mandate relief under Strickland because the mitigation overlooked by defense counsel would not have changed the outcome of the defendant's sentence in light of the evidence. See Robinson, 707 So. 2d at 697; Breedlove, 692 So. 2d at 878; see also Tompkins v. Dugger, 549 So. 2d 1370, 1373 (Fla.1989) (finding the mitigating evidence overlooked by defense counsel would not have changed the outcome and therefore did not demonstrate prejudice under the Strickland test). We reach the same conclusion in this case.

Even if Pearl's decision to solely rely on Dr. Krop's testimony was

deficient, Randolph has not demonstrated error in the postconviction court's conclusion that no prejudice resulted from Pearl's performance. Considering the four valid aggravators and the cumulative nature of the testimony from the evidentiary hearing,FN9 we find no error in the postconviction court's finding that Randolph has not demonstrated the prejudice necessary to mandate relief. *Robinson*, 707 So. 2d at 697; see also *Routly v. State*, 590 So. 2d 397, 401 (Fla.1991) (finding that defendant did not demonstrate reasonable probability that sentence would have been different had trial counsel presented proffered mitigating evidence where much of the evidence was already before the judge and jury in a different form).

FN9. See Teffeteller v. Dugger, 734 So. 2d 1009, 1021 (Fla.1999) (finding much of the mitigating evidence that defendant faulted counsel for not presenting was cumulative to that presented by the mental health expert during the sentencing proceeding).

Randolph also claims defense counsel was ineffective for failing to ensure Randolph was provided an adequate mental health evaluation and for failing to provide the necessary background material to the mental health expert. A criminal defendant is entitled to expert psychiatric assistance when the state makes his or her mental state relevant to the proceedings. *See Ake v. Oklahoma*, 470 U.S. 68, 105 S.Ct. 1087, 84 L.Ed.2d 53 (1985). Randolph had the assistance of a mental health expert in the form of Dr. Krop. **Randolph fails to allege with any specificity the prejudice he suffered as a result of counsel's or the expert's performance.** We affirm the trial court's denial of relief on the issue of ineffective assistance of counsel during the penalty phase.

Randolph v. State, 853 So. 2d 1051, 1059 -1061 (Fla. 2003).

Relief was denied for several reasons:

(1) Counsel was not deficient – the postconviction evidence presented was cumulative to that presented at the penalty phase;

- (2) There was no prejudice because:
 - (a) There are four valid aggravators and the testimony from the evidentiary hearing was cumulative nature; and
 - (b) Randolph failed to allege with any specificity the prejudice he suffered as a result of counsel's or the expert's performance.

Randolph fails to explain how, since counsel was not deficient, any misapplication of the *Strickland* prejudice standard would impact his case. *Troy v. State*, 57 So.3d 828, 834 (Fla. 2011)("To successfully prove a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel, both prongs of the *Strickland* test must be satisfied."). In *Porter*, counsel *was* deficient and the focus was the prejudice analysis conducted on the evidence presented in that case. Randolph cannot meet the deficiency prong of *Strickland*; thus, there is no ineffectiveness and this appeal is patently frivolous.

Even if counsel had been found deficient, Randolph's claim fails for lack of prejudice because

- (1) The successive motion was untimely, successive, and procedurally barred;
- (2) Porter not a retroactive change in the law; and
- (3) This Court's *Strickland* analysis on prejudice is not flawed. (R142-144).

<u>Untimely, successive, procedurally barred.</u> Randolph' judgment and sentence became final in 1990 when the Supreme Court denied certiorari. See, *Randolph v*.

Florida, 498 U.S. 992, 111 S.Ct. 538, 112 L.Ed.2d 548 (1990); Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.851(d)(1)(B) (judgment becomes final "on the disposition of the petition for writ of certiorari by the United States Supreme Court"). Randolph' successive Rule 3.851 motion, filed in 2010, is untimely filed – by twenty (20) years.¹

No exception to the time bar exists. The ineffectiveness-of-counsel issues were decided by this Court in 2003 and are procedurally barred. As this Court has held, attempts to relitigate claims that have previously been raised and rejected are procedurally barred. See Wright v. State, 857 So. 2d 861, 868 (Fla. 2003). Under the law of the case doctrine, Randolph cannot relitigate a claim that has been denied by the trial court and affirmed by the appellate court. State v. McBride, 848 So. 2d 287, 289-290 (Fla. 2003). It is also well established that piecemeal litigation of claims of ineffective assistance of counsel is clearly prohibited. *Pope v. State*, 702 So. 2d 221, 223 (Fla. 1997); Lambrix v. State, 698 So. 2d 247, 248 (Fla. 1996). Since this is precisely what Randolph is attempting to do here, his IAC/penalty phase claim is barred and was correctly denied. See Topps v. State, 865 So. 2d 1253, 1255 (Fla. 2004) (discussing application of res judicata to claims previously litigated on the merits).

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